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August 2, 20 19 

Independent Auditors' Report 

The Honorable Gerald Hamilton, Mayor 
and the Board of Aldennen 

Town of Colfax, Louisiana 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of 
Colfax, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accormting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of Internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

AUDITOR'S RESPONSffiiLITY 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governme11t Auditing 
Standards, issued by the ComptToller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedttres selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes assessing the appropriateness of accounting principles used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

-Members-
American lnsUtuta of Cortlflod Public Accountante • Soeloty of Louisiana CPAs 
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The Honorable Gerald Hamilton, Mayor 
and the Board of Aldermen 

August 2, 2019 

OPINION 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activi.ties, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Colfax, as of June 30, 20 19, and 
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year 
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

OTHER MATTERS 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require the information 
listed below to supplement the basic financial statements. 

• Management's Discussion and Analysis 
• Budgetary Comparison Information 
• Schedule ofNet Pension Liability Data 
• Schedule of Employer Contributions 

Such information, although not a pa1t of the basic financial statements, is required by the Government 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary infotmation in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the jnformation because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opm10ns on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Town of Colfax's basic financial statements. The other supplemental 
information listed below is presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of 
the basic financial statements. 

• Schedule of Compensation Paid to Board Members 
• Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head or Chief 

Executive Officer 

The other supplementary information is the responsibility of management and is derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
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The Honorable Gerald Hamilton, Mayor 
and the Board of Aldermen 

August 2, 20 19 

financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the other supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to 
the basic financial statements as a whole. 

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARD 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated August 2, 2019, 
on our consideration of the Town of Col fax' s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of ow· testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit perfom1cd in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Colfax's internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 

~,~_ .. q)1~ 
ROZIER, HARRINGTON & MCKAY 
Certified Public Accountants 
Alexandria, LA 
August 2, 2019 
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INDEPEN DENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON fNTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUD111NG STANDARDS 

The Honorable Gerald Hamilton, Mayor 
And the Board of Alderman 

Town of Colfax, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Town of Colfax, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Town of Colfax's basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report herein dated August 2, 2019. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Town of Colfax's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of 
Colfax's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Town 
of Colfax's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not aJlow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies that we consider to be a material weakness in internal control. We 
identified two significant deficiencies in internal control; findings 2019-1 and 20 J 9-3; described in 

-Members-
American tnslltuto or Certtned Public Accountants • Society or l o\Jistana CPAs 
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The Honorable Gerald Hamilton, Mayor 
and the Board of Aldermen 

August 2, 2019 

the accompanying schedule of findings that we consider to be significant deficiencies in internal 
control. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been 
identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Colfax's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed four 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards, Findings 20 19-2, 2019-3, 2019-4, and 2019-5. 

Town of Colfax's Response to Findings 

The Town of Colfax's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying management's corrective action plan. The Town of Colfax's response was not 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of financial statements and, accordingly, 
we express no opinion on it. 

Purpose ofThis Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

~~~)~qVJ~ 
ROZrER, HARRJNGTON & McKAY 
Certified Public Accountants 
Alexandria, LA 
August 2, 20 19 
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Town of Colfax 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2019 

This section of the Town of Colfax's annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the 
Town's financia l performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. 

Overview of Financial Statements 
The basic financial statements include govcmment-wide financial statements and fund financial statements. 
These two types of financia l statements present the Town's financial position and results of operations from 
differing perspectives which are described as follows: 

Government - Wide Financial Statements 
The government-wide financial statements report information about the Town as a whole using accounting 
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. These report all revenues and expenses regard less 
of when cash is received or paid. Furthermore, the government-wide statements include all of the Town's 
assets (including infi'astructure acquired after July I, 2003) and all of the Town's liabilities (including long­
tetm debt). 

The government-wide financial statements are divided into two categories, which are described as follows: 

• Governmental Activities - Expenses incurred in connection with providing basic services including 
police protection, fire protection, culture, recreation, public works, and general administration are 
reported as governmental activities. The governmental activities are fi nanced by taxes, license fees, 
fi nes, court cost, interest, grants, and contributions. 

• Business-Type Activities - Expenses associated with providing utili ty services are recovered 
through fees paid by the customers that utilize these services. These activities are operated in a 
manner similar to commercial enterprises. Accordingly, activities associated with the utility system 
and sanitation services are reported as business type activities. 

Fund Financial Statements 
Fund financial statements provide detailed information regarding the Town's most significant activities and 
are not intended to provide information for the Town as a whole. Funds arc accounting devices that are used 
to account for specific sources of funds . The Town has two types of funds that are described as follows: 

• Governmental Funds - These funds arc used to account for essentially the same functions that 
are repot1od as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, 
unlike government-wide financial statements, the governmental funds use a modified accrual 
basis of accounting that provides a sho1t -tcnn view of the Town's finances. Assets reported by 
governmental funds arc limited to amounts that are available for current needs. In addition, 
liabilities are limited to amounts that are expected to be paid from currently available assets. 

• Proprietary Fund - These funds are used to account for activities that function in a manner 
similar to commercial enterprises, including activities associated with the Town's uti lity system 
and sanitation services. Proprietary fund financial statements typically provide a more detai l 
presentation of the infonnation reported in the business-type activities portion of the 
government-wide financial statements. 



TOWN OF COLFAX 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANAL YSJS 
June 30, 2019 

Fina ncial Analysis of the Town as a Whole 
A comparative analysis of government-wide data is presented as fo llows: 

Net Position 
A condensed version of the govcmment-wide Statement of Net Position is presented as follows: 

Assets: 
Current and other assets 
Capital assets 
Total assets 

Deferred Outflows 

Liabilities: 
Current and other liabilities. 
Long-tenn liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Deferred Inflows 

Net Position: 
{nvested in Capital Assets (Net) 
Unrestricted 
Total Net Position 

Govern-
mental 

Activities 

$ 274,966 
1,065,458 
1,340 424 

I 07,739 

46,977 
194,634 
241 ,611 

20,769 

l ,065,458 
120,325 

$ I, 185,783 

June 30, 2019 
Business-

Type 
Activities 

$ 286,470 
2,606,867 
2,893,337 

67,563 

151,169 
258,052 
409,221 

31,603 

2,606,867 
(86,791) 

$ 2,520,076 

For the 
Year Ended 

Total June 30, 2018 

$ 561 ,436 $ 1,040, 158 
3,672,325 3,456,447 
4,233,761 4,496,605 

175,302 229,087 

198, \46 65 1,859 
452,686 522,749 
650,832 l ' 174,608 

52,372 31 ,689 

3,672,325 3,445,192 
33,534 74,203 

3,705,859 3,519,395 

As the presentation appearing above demonstrates, the Town's net position is invested primarily in capital 
assets. Net assets invested in capital assets consist of land, buildings, and equipment less any debt used to 
acquire the assets that remain outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to its 
citizens; consequently, these amounts are not available for future spending. There is $33,534 in unrestricted 
net assets available to meet the Town 's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 
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TOWN OF COLFAX 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2019 

Changes iu Net Position 
A condensed version of the government-wide Statement of Changes in Net Position is presented as follows: 

June 30, 2019 
Govern- For the Year 
mental Business-Type Ended 

Activities Activities Total Jupe30, 2018 

Revenues: 
Program Revenue: 

Charges for Services $ 23,806 $ 864,324 $ 888,130 $ 932,757 
Operating Grants and 

Contributions 6,000 6,000 10,325 
Capital Grants and 

Contributions 298,540 37,153 335,693 499,660 
General Revenue: 

Property Taxes 118, 179 1181179 119,261 
Sales Taxes 325,495 325,495 321,7 11 
Franchise Taxes 63,293 63,293 59,409 
Occupational Licenses 61,574 61 ,574 63,128 
Payment in Lieu ofTaxes 10,196 10, 196 9,037 
Miscellaneous 24,323 175 24 498 26,596 

Total Revenue 931,406 901 ,652 1,833,058 2,041 ,854 

Program Ex~enses: 
General Government 261,042 261 ,042 247,626 
Public Safety 229, 168 229,168 249,105 
Streets, Drainage, and 

Recreation 216,227 216,227 163,882 
Utility System 848,305 848,305 814,803 
Sanitation 91 852 91 2852 93,375 
Total Expenses 706 437 940,157 1,6462594 1,568.791 

Increase in Net Position Before 
Transfers 224,969 (38,505) 186,464 473,063 

Transfers (307,4 1 0) 307,410 
Change in Net Position (82,441) 268,905 186,464 473,063 

Net Position Be,ginning 1,268,224 2,251, 171 3,519,395 3,046,332 

Net Position Ending $ 1' 185,783 $ 21520,076 $ 317051859 $ 315 19,395 
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TOWN OF COLFAX 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30, 2019 

Governmental activities decreased the Town's net position by $82,441. This decrease is mainly due to an 
increase in transfers, due to construction expenditures incurred by governmental-type funds for the benefit of 
the Town's business-type funds. 

Business-type activities increased the Town's net posttton by $268,905. This increase is a result of a 
substantial amount of transfers from governmental-type funds in the current year. 

Financial Analysis of the Town's Funds 
An analysis of significant matters affecting the Town's funds is presented as follows: 

• The Town's governmental funds repot1ed combined fund balances of$228, I 81, which represents a 
decrease of $2,374 in comparison to the previous balance. This decrease is primarily attributable to 
a decrease in fine revenue during the current year. 

• Amounts t·eported for business-type activities in the Town's individual funds are identical to the 
business-type activities reported on the government-wide presentation. 

General Fund Budget Highlights 
The general fund is the only fund required by law to adopt a budget. The budget was amended as necessary. 
Some revisions of the original budget were necessary in order to address additional revenues and 

expenditures not anticipated with the original budget. A summary of the gcne•·al fund budget compared to 
actual amounts is presented as follows: 

Total Revenues 
Total Expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 

over expenditmes 
Operating Transfers In (net) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Budget Amounts 

Original Final 
$ 643,600 $ 712,010 

643,600 865,565 

( 153,555) 
(77,000) 

Actual 
Amounts 

$ 632,866 
626,370 

6,496 
(8,870) 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ (79,144) 
239,195 

160,051 
68,130 

$ $ (230,555) $ (2,374) _$ __ 2_28~,_1 8_1_ 
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TOWN OF COLFAX 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
June 30,2019 

CaQital Asset Administration 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 20 19. is summarized as fo llows: 

Governmental Business-Type Total 
Activities Activities Activities 

Additions: 
Construction in Process $ $ (5 19,985) $ (5 19,985) 
Buildings 
Distribution and Equipment 902,798 902,798 
Total Additions 382,813 382,813 

Depreciation (561681) (I I 01253) ( 167 !2342 
Net Increase (Decrease) (56,681) 272,560 215,879 
Beginning Capital Asset (Net) 11122, 139 213341307 3,456!446 
End ing Capital Assets (Net) $ 1,065,458 $ 2,606,867 $ 3,672,325 

Highlights of the Town's capital asset administration are provided as fo llows: 

• Governmeotal Activities: There were no capital add itions in the current year. 
• Business-type Activities: In the current year, the Town purchased leak detection equ ipment, 

aerator motors, and completed an elevated ground storage tank. 

Debt Administration 

There was no debt issued in the current year. 

Factors Expected to Affect F uture Operations 
The Town is expecting to incur capital expenditures to construct a nc\.v water well for the Town's uti lity 
system, with fund ing provided by the USDA. Loans issued and grants awarded by the USDA are expected to 
amount to over $2,000,000 in the aggregate. Work on the new water well is expected to begin in the next 
fisca l year. Thel'e are no otber factors expected to have a significant impact on future operations at the 
present time. 
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Town of Colfax 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2019 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables (net) 
Capital Assets: 

Non depreciable capital assets 
Depreciable, net 

Total assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 
Pension Funding Deferrals 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and other payables 
Deposits due others 
Long-term liabilities 

Aggregate net pension liability 
Long -Term Debt 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS 
Pension Funding Deferrals 

NET POSITION 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Unrestricted 

Governmental 

$ 

Activities 

202,491 
72,475 

207,068 
858,390 

1,340,424 

107,739 

46,977 

178,639 

15,995 

241,611 

20,769 

1,065,458 
120,325 

Business-Type 

$ 

Activ.ities 

178,575 
107,895 

6,232 
2,600,635 

2,893,337 

67,563 

46,7 10 
I 04,459 

210,189 

47,863 

409,221 

3 1,603 

2,606,867 
(86,791) 

$ 

Total 

38 1,066 
180,370 

213,300 
3,459,025 

4,233,761 

175,302 

93,687 
104,459 

388,828 

63,858 

650,832 

52,372 

3,672,325 
33,534 

Total net position (deficit) $ 1,185,783 $ 2,520,07 6 .... $ _...;;,3,6,, 7,;,;05;;,!,,8;;..;;5..-9 

The accompanying notes are all integral pari of the financial statements. 
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Town of Colfax 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

EXQeoses 

Governmental Activities: 
General Government $ 261,042 

Public Safety 229,168 
Streets, Drainage, & Recreation 216,227 

Total Governmental Activities 706,437 

Business-T:n!e Activities: 

Utility System 848,305 
Sanitation 91,852 

Total Business-Type Activities 940,157 

Total Primary Government s 1,646,594 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 

Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets 

Operating Capital Business-

Charges for Grants and Grants & Governmental Type 

Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 

$ $ $ 298,540 $ 37,498 s $ 37,498 

23,806 6,000 (199,362} (199,362} 

{216,227) (216,227) 

23,806 6,000 298,540 (378,091) (378,091) 

769,959 37,153 (41,193} (41,193) 
94,365 2,513 2,513 

&64,324 37,153 (38,680) (38,680) 

$ 888,130 s 6,000 s 335,693 (378,091) (38,680) (416,771) 

General Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Ad Valorem 118,i79 118,179 

Sales Taxes 325,495 325,495 

Franchise 63,293 63,293 

Occupational Licenses 61,574 61,574 

Payment in lieu of taxes 10,196 10,196 

Other 24,323 175 24,498 
Transfers (307,410) 307,410 

Total General Revenues and Transfers 295,650 307,585 603,235 

Change in Net Assets (82.441) 268,905 18()..464 

Net Position Beginning 1,268,224 2,251 ,171 3,519,395 

Net Position Ending $ 1,185,783 $ 2,520,076 $ 3,705,859 

The accompanying notes are cvt integral part of lire ji'1tlncial statements. 
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Town of Colfax 

Balance Sheet 

Governmental Funds· June 30, 2019 

Total 
Governmental 

General LCDBG Funds 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 202,433 $ 58 $ 202,491 
Receivables (net) 72,475 72,475 
lnterfund Due To/From 250 (250) 

Total assets $ 275,158 $ (192) $ 274,966 

Liabilities and fund equity 

Liabilities: 

Accounts and other payables $ 42,366 $ $ 42,366 
Accrued expenses 4,611 4,611 

Total liabilities 46,977 46,977 

Fund equity: 
Unassigned 228,181 (192) 227,989 

Total fund equity 228,181 (192) 227,989 

Total liabilities and fund equity $ 275,158 $ ~192) $ 274,966 

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftheflntmcial statements. 
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Town of Colfax 

Reconciliation of Fund Balances on the Balance Sheet for 

Governmental Funds to Net Assets of Governmental 

Activities on the Statement of Net Position 

Year Ended June 30~ 2019 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are 
different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities arc not financial resources and 

therefore arc not reported in the funds. 
Long tetm liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and 

therefore they are not reported in the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet 

Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofrhefinancial statements. 

$ 

$ 

227,989 

1,065,458 

( 107,664) 

1,1 85,783 



Town of Colfax 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Governmental Funds- Year Ended June 301 2019 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Ad valorem 
Sales tax 

Licenses and permits: 
Occupational licenses 
Franchise 

Fines and fees 
l ntergovernrnental: 

Beer tax 
Payment in lieu of taxes 
Other intergovernmental 

Other 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Cun·ent: 

General government 
Public safety 
Streets, drainage, and recreation 

Debt Service 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures 

$ 

General 
fund 

118, 179 
325,495 

61 ,574 
63,293 
23,806 

3,450 
10,196 
10.150 
16,723 

632!866 

257,505 
180,2 11 
177,159 
11.495 

626,370 

6,496 

LCDBG 

$ 

298,540 

298!540 

36 

36 

298,504 

$ 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

118,179 
325,495 

61 ,574 
63,293 
23,806 

3,450 
10,196 

308,690 
16,723 

931 !406 

257,54 1 
180,2 11 
177,159 

11,495 

626,406 

305!000 

Continued ... 

Tire accompanying 110/es are an integral part ofthefinancilll statements, 
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Town of Colfax 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Governmental Funds- Year Ended June 301 2019 Concluded ... 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financing sou rces (uses) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other financing sources over 
expenditures a nd other uses 

Fund balance- beginning of year 

F und balance- end of year $ 

General 

6,496 

49,8 13 
(58,683) 

(8,870) 

(2,374) 

230,555 

228,181 $ 

LCDBG 

298,504 

22,691 
(32 1 ,23 1) 

(298,540) 

(36) 

(156) 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

305,000 

72,504 
(379,914) 

(307,410) 

(2,4 10) 

230,399 

( 192) ,;;,.$ _ --..;2;.;;.2-..:.7 ._98;.;..9 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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Town of Colfax 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues~ Expenditures~ 

and Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the 

Statement of Activities 

Year Ended June 30~ 2019 

Net change in fund balances of Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over 
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the 
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current 
period. 

Capital expenditures reported by Governmental Funds 
Depreciation expense repmicd on a government-wide basis (56,681) 

Repayment of Capital Leases is an expenditure in the goverrunental funds , but 
the repayment reduces long term liabilities in the statement of net position 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use 
of cunent financial resomces and therefore are not reported as 
expenditures by governmental funds. 

Change in net position of governmental activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe finnncial statements. 
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$ (2,41 0) 

(56,681) 

11 ,255 

(34,605) 

$ (82,441) 



Town of Colfax 
Statement of Net Position 

Proprietary Funds - Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Business-T~Ee Activities 
Utility Sanitation 
sxstem sxstem Total 

Assets 
Current Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 178,575 $ $ 178,575 
Receivables (net) 93, 138 14,757 107,895 

Total current assets 271,713 14,757 286,470 

Noncurrent Assets: 
Non-Depreciable capital assets 

Land 6,232 6,232 

Construction in Progress 
Depreciable capital assets, net 2,600,635 2,600,635 

Total noncutTent assets 2,606,867 2,606,867 

Total assets 2,878,580 14,757 2,893,337 

Deferred Outflows 
Employer contributions to pension plan 67,563 67,563 

Liabilities: 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts and other payables 34,888 7,607 42,495 

Accrued expenses 4,215 4,215 

Deposits due others 104,459 104,459 

Compensated Absences 47,863 47,863 

Total Current Liabilities 191 ,425 7,607 199,032 

Noncurrent Liabi I ities 
Aggregate net pension liability 210,189 2 10,189 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2 10,189 210, 189 

Total liabilities 401 ,614 7,607 409,221 

Deferred Inflows: 
Pension funding deferrals 3 1,603 31,603 

Net Position: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 2,606,867 2,606,867 

Unrestricted (93,941) 7,150 (86,791) 

Total net position $ 2,5 12,926 $ 7, 150 $ 2,520,076 

The accompanying no(es are an integral pa/'1 of the financial .statements. 
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Town of Colfax 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Net Assets 

Proprietary Funds - Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Business-Type Activities 

Utility Sanitation 
S~stem S~stem Total 

Operating Revenues: 
Charges for services: 

Gas sales $ 254,739 $ $ 254,739 
Water sales 310,096 310,096 
Sewer chArges 170,6 12 170,6 12 
Sanitation charges 94,365 94,365 

Delinquent charges 34,163 34,163 
Miscellaneous 349 349 

Total operating revenues 769!959 94,365 8641324 

Operating Expenses: 
Natural gas purchases 98,1 21 98,121 
Salaries and wages 231,326 231,326 
Contract Labor 91,852 91 ,852 
Materials, supplies, and maintenance 192,133 192,133 
Office and postage 10,185 10,185 
Payroll taxes 18,201 18,20 1 
Retirement 25,783 25,783 
Vehicle and travel 18,255 18,255 
l.nsurance 29,741 29,741 
Professional fees 4,090 4,090 
Sewer expense 3,649 3,649 
M iscellaoeous 8,968 8,968 
Lease 6,500 6,500 
Utilities and telephone 91,100 91,100 
Depreciation 110!253 1101253 

Total operating expenses 848,305 91,852 940 157 

Operating income (loss) (78,346) 2,513 (75,833) 

Non-operating revenues (expenses}: 
Capital Grant Proceeds 37, 153 37, 153 
Interest income 175 175 

Change in net assets before 
Contributions and transfers (41 ,018) 2,513 {38,505) 

Contributions and Transfers: 
Operating Transfers In 377,318 377,318 
Operating Transfers Out (59!788) (10,120) {69,908) 

Change in net position 27615 12 {71607) 268!905 

Net Position Beginning 2,236,414 14,757 2,25 1,17 1 

Total net posi tion- ending $ 2,512,926 $ 7,150 $ 2,520,076 

The accompa' l)!/ng Hot~s are an lnt~gral pal'/ ojtl1e financial slatemenls. 
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Town of Colfax 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Proprietary Funds - Year Ended June 301 2019 

Business·T.n!c Activities 

Utility Sanitation 
Slstem S~stem Total 

Cash now from onc•·ating activities: 
Cash received from customers $ 782,637 $ 94,365 $ 877,002 
Cash payments (0 suppliers of goods and services (526,913) (84,245) (6 11,158) 
Cash payments to employees for service (249,215) (249,215) 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 6 509 10, 120 16,629 

Cnsh flows from non-cnnital linaneing activities: 
lnterfund activity, net 
Operating transfers, net 317.530 (10. 120) 307,410 

Net cash provided (used) by non-capital 
financing activities 317.530 ( I 0, 120) 307 410 

Cash flows from capital and related financing 
:lctivitics: 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (382,812) (382,81 2) 
Capltnl Grant Proceeds 37,153 37, 153 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and 
rein ted tlnnncing acttvities (345,659) (345,659) 

Cash nows from in~csting activities: 
Interest o.nd other income 175 175 

Net cash provided (used) by investing 
activities 175 175 

Net inc re:~se (decrc11sc) in cash (21 ,445) (21,445) 
Beginning cash bnlancc 2001020 2001020 

Ending cns b balance 178,575 178,575 
Cash - restricted 

Cnsh - unrestricted $ 1 78~575 $ .$ 178,575 

Th~ CICCO/JipCIII)'illg IIOtC$ fli'U all ln!~gral part qf t /rc ji11011CtO/ StO!Cment.r, 
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Town of Colfax 

Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) 

Proprietary Funds · Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 

Operating [ncomc (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable 
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses 
(Decrease) increase in meter deposits 
(Decrease) increase in net pension liabi li ty 
(Dect'ease) increase in compensated absences 

Net cash provided (used) by operating 
activities 

Supplemental disclos ures of cash now info•·mntion: 

$ 

$ 

Business-Type Activities 

Utility 

System 

(78,346) $ 

11 0,253 
9,019 

(16,752) 
(2,379) 

3,659 
( 1 ,056) 

(17,889) 

6,509 $ 

Sanitation 

System Total 

2,5 13 $ (75,833) 

110,253 
9,019 

7,607 (9,145) 

(2,3 79) 
3,659 

(1 ,056) 

~ 17,889) 

10,120 $ 16,629 ___ ....__ 

For the ycnrs ended June 30, 2019 there were no investing, capilal, and linancing activities that did not result in cash receipts or 
payments. 

The ocCOIIIpanying noles are an integral part of t he financial stalemeniJ', 
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TOWN OF COLFAX 

Notes ttJ Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Town of Colfax, Louisiana (the Town) was incorporated under the provisions of the Lawrason Act and 
operates under a Mayor-Board of Aldern1en fonn of govenunent. The Town provides various services including 
public safety, streets and drainage, recreation, public improvements, utility (gas, watc1·, sewerage, and 
sanitation), and general administrative services. 

The accompanying policies of the Town of Colfax, Louisiana, conform to generally accepted accounting 
principles as applicable to govemmental units. The following is a summary ofthe more significant policies. 

Finan cia) Reporting Entity 

As the municipal governing authority, for reporting purposes the Town is conside1·ed a separate financial 
rep011ing entity. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government (the Town), (b) 
organizations for which the primary govenuncnt is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which 
the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would 
cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board establishes criteria for determining which component unils should 
be considered patt of the Town of Colfax for financial reporting purposes. The basic criterion for including a 
potential component unit within the reporting entity is financial accountability. The GASB has set forth criteria 
lo be considered in determining financial accountability. This criterion includes: 

I. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's goveming body, and 

• The ability of the Town to impose its will on that organization, and/or 

• The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial 
burdens on the Town. 

2. Organizations for which the Town docs not appoint a voting majority but are fiscally dependent on the 
Town. 

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be misleading if data of the 
organ ization is not included because of the nanu·e or significance of the relationship. 

Based upon the above criteria, the Town of Colfax has no component units for the year ended June 30, 201 9. 

Basic Financial Statements 

The basic financial statements include both government-wide and fund financial statements. Both 
government-wide and fund financial statements categorize activities as either governmental activities or 
business-type activities, which are described as follows: 

• Governmental activities involve government services that are normally supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues. 

• Business-type activities rely on fees and charges for supp011 and operate in a manner similar to 
private sector enterprises. 
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TOWN OF COLFAX 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

The government-wide and fund financial statements present the Town's financial position and results of 
operations from differing perspectives which are described as fo llows: 

Government-Wide F inancial Statements 
The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities display infmmation about the Town 
as a whole. The effect of most inter-fund activity is eliminated from these financial statements. 
FUtthermore, government-wide financial statements exclude any fiduciary activities which are 
reported in the fund financial statements. 

Program revenues reported in the Statement of Activities consist of amounts that arc directly 
associated with a governmental service or business-type activity. Program t·evenues include 
charges for services, fines, court cost, contributions associated with a particu lar function and 
most grants. 

Fund Financial Statements 
Funds are separate accounting entities that are designed to assist with demonstrating legal 
compliance and segregating transactions by activity. Separate financial statements are provided 
for governmental funds and proprietary funds. In addition, separate financial statements are 
presented for any fiduciary activities. Major individual funds are reported as separate columns in 
the fund financial statements. The Town's major funds are described as follows: 

• Governmental Funds 
• General fund - The general fund is the primary operating fund and is used to 

account for all governmental activities. 
• LCDBG Fund - The LGDBG Fund accounts for monies received from Louisiana 

Community Development Block Grants, and is used in the cun·ent year to account 
for the construction of an Elevated Ground Storage Tank for the Town. 

• Proprietary Funds 
• Utility System- The utility fund is used to account for the operation of the Town' s 

water, sewer, and natural gas system which are supported by user charges. 
• Sanitation Fund - The Sanitation f und is used to account for the operation of the 

Town's sanitation dcpattment, and is supported by user charges. 

Business-Type funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing goods and services in connection with the funds 
ongoing operations. Principal operating revenues are charges to customers for natural gas, water and 
sewer service. 

Basis of Accountine: 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and 
rcpo•ted in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, 
regardless of the measurement focus applied. The basis of accounting and measurement focus used for various 
financial statement presentations arc described as follows: 
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TOWN OF COLFAX 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

Financial Statement Presentation 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
Fund Financial Statements: 

Govermnentaf Funds 
Proprietary Funds 
Fiduciary Funds 

Basis of Accounting 
Accrual Basis 

Modified Accrual Basis 
Accrual Basis 
Accrual Basis 

Measurement Focus 
Economic Resources 

Current Financial Resources 
Economic Resources 
No measurement focus 

Under the accrual basis of accounting and the economic resources measurement focus, revenues are recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred. 

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting and the current financial resources measurement focus 
revenue is recognized when it is considered measurable and available. Revenue is considered available if it 
is collected within 60 days of year-end. In addition, expenses are generally recorded when a liability has been 
incurred; however, debt service, compensated absences, claims and judgments are recorded as expenses when 
payment is made. Fur1hermore, when the current financial resources measurement focus is used, amounts 
recorded as assets exclude capital assets and the acquisition of capital assets is treated as an expenditure. In 
addition, long-term debts arc excluded from amounts reported as liabilities. Proceeds from issuing long-tem1 
debt are reported as an other-financing source and repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure. 

Non-Exchange Transactions 

Revenue from certain non-exchange transactions cannot be properly measured prior to collection. 
Fur1hermorc, it is not practical to determine the probabili ty of collection resulting from certain non-exchange 
transactions such as traffic citations. Consequently, revenue from fines and court cost are not recognized 
until they are collected. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ fi·om those estimates. 

Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets represent resources that must be expended in a specific manner. Restrictions of this nature 
are imposed by various contractual obligations including grant agreements and bond covenants. In situations 
where it is pem1issible to spend restricted resources, the Town typically depletes the available restricted 
resources before consuming unrestricted resources. 

Budget Practices 

The Mayor prepares an annual budget for the Town's general fund. This budget is submitted to the Board of 
Aldermen and an approved budget is adopted before the beginning of each fi scal year. Amended budgets are 
prepared prior to the conclusion of each fiscal year. The amended budgets are prepared and approved in the 
same manner as the original budget. 

The general fund budget presents revenue and expenditures on a basis which is consistent with generally 
accepted accounting principles. No annual budget is required for the Town's Utility Fund. 
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TOWN OF COLFAX 

Notes to Financia l Statements 
June 301 2019 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are carried at historical cost or estimated historical cost including interest incurred during 
constr uction. Prior to July I, 1989, there were few records supporting the cost; therefore, cost related to the 
Town's utility system is estimated based on information furnished by the Town's consulting engineers. Cost 
of bui !dings and equipment acquired prior to July I, 1989, were estimated based on replacement cost. 

Infras tt·ucture capital assets consisting of streets, bridges, sidewalks, and drainage systems acquired before 
Ju ly l, 2003, arc excluded ft·om capital assets. Depreciation associated with capital assets is computed using 
the straight-line method over the estimated useful I ives of the assets. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Amounts reported as cash and cash equivalents (restricted and unrestricted) include all cash on hand, cash in 
bank accounts, certificates of deposit, and highly liquid investments. Credit risk associated with bank deposits 
is limited by requiring fiscal agent banks to pledge securi ties as required by State Law. Furthermore, interest 
rate risk associated with certificates of deposits is typically mitigated by purchasing instruments that mature 
in one year or less. 

Encumbrance Accounting 

Purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments to engage in future expenditures are referred to as 
encumbrances. Since encumbrances do not represent liabilities or cun·ent expenditures, encumbrances arc not 
rep011ed in the accompanying financial statements. 

Compensated Absences 

Accumulated unpaid vacation and compensatory pay have been accrued when incurred in the Proprietary Funds 
(using the accrual basis of accounting). These amounts relating to the Governmental Funds have been presented 
in the govemrncnt-wide financial statements. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For the purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes all cash on hand, cash in bank, and 
certificates of deposit. 

lnterfund Transactions 

Resources belonging to particular funds are commonly shared with other funds that need access to additional 
resources. When resources are provided without expectation of repayment, the transaction is reported as a 
transfer. Transfers are treated as a source of income by the recipient and as an expense or expenditure by the 
provider. If repayment is eventually expected to occur, interfund receivables and payables are recorded. 

In preparing the government-wide financial statements, transfers are eliminated to present net transfers for 
governmental activities and business-type activities. In addition, interfund receivables and payables are 
eliminated to present a net internal balance for each type of activity. 

Fund Balance Classification 

Approval of the majority of the Board of Aldennen is required to approve the comm itrnent of fund balances. 
In situations where it is permissible to spend restricted or committed resources, the Town typically depletes 
the available restricted or committed resources before consum ing unrestricted resources. 
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TOWN OF COLFAX 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30,2019 

NOTE 2 -CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

At June 30,2019, cash and cash equivalents totaled $381,066 (book balance) and $386,497 (bank balance). 
The book balance is considered unrestricted. 

Deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market value. Under state law, these deposits must be secured by 
federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the 
pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal 
agent. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that 
is mutually acceptable to both pa1ties. 

At June 30, 2019, the Town's bank deposits are secured from risk by $250,000 of federal deposit insurance 
and $482,501 of pledged securities held by the custodial bank in the name of the fiscal agent bank. 

Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized (Category 3), State law imposes a 
statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within ten ( I 0) days of 
being notified by the Town that the pledging bank has failed to pay deposited funds on demand. 

NOTE 3- RECEIVABLES 

Receivables at June 30,2019, consisted of the following: 

Accounts Receivable 

Charges for Services 
Franchise Taxes 
Occupational License 
Other 
Total Accounts Receivables 

Due From Other Govcrnmcutal Units 
Sales Taxes 
Other 
Total Due Prom Other Governmental Units 

Total Receivables 
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

Net Receivables 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 

$ 
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I 5,379 

15,379 

56,127 

969 
57,096 

72,475 

72,475 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$ 

$ 

114,785 

114,785 

114,785 

(6,890) 

I 07,895 

Total 

$ 114,785 

15,379 

130,164 

56, 127 

969 
57,096 

187,260 

(6,890) 

$ 180,370 



TOWN OF COLFAX 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

NOTE 4 - LONG -TERM LIABILITIES 

Long-tenn liabilities are reported as governmental activities. The Town's long-term liabi lities arc 
summarized as follows: 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

Long-Term Liabilities 
Compensated Absences $ 15,995 $ 47,863 $ 63,858 
Debt Instruments 

Capital Lease ~ 
Total Long-term Debt 15,995 47,863 63,858 
Due Within One Year 
Due in More Than One Year $ 15,995 $ 47,863 $ 63.858 

Compensated Absences 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance 

Governmental Activities 
Compensated absences $ 12,057 $ 3,938 $ $ 15,995 

Business-Ty[!e Activities 

Compensated Absences 65,752 17,889 47,863 

Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 77,809 $ 3,938 $ 17,889 $ 63,858 

Debt Instruments 

Long-te1m liabilities include debt instruments that are summarized as fo llows: 

Governmental Activities 
Capital Lease 

Total Long-Term Debts 

Beginning 
Balance 

11,255 
$ 11,255 
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Additions 

$ 

Reductions 

11 ,255 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 11 ,255 _$ _ __ _ 



TOWN OF COLFAX 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

NOTE 5 - AD VALOREM TAXES 

The Town bills and collects its own property taxes using assessed values detennined by the Tax Assessor of 
Grant Parish. 

Ad vaiOI'em taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of each year. Taxes are levied by the 
Town in September or October and are actually billed to the taxpayers in late November or December. 

Billed taxes become delinquent on January 1 of the fo llowing year. Revenues from ad valorem taxes are 
budgeted in the year billed. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Town levied 13.99 mills of ad valorem taxes totaling $118,179 which were 
dedicated to the general corporate purposes of the Town. 

~OTE 6 -FIXED ASSETS 
Changes in the governmental and business-ty pe capital assets arc presented as follows; 

Beginning Ending 

Balance Additions Disposals Balance 

Gover nmental Activities 
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets 

Construction in Progress $ $ $ $ 

Land 207,068 207,068 

Total 207,068 207,068 

Depreciable Capital Assets 
Buildings 44,322 44,322 
Improvements 1,787,450 1,787,450 

Equipment 465,764 465,764 

Accumulated Depreciation (I ,3 82,465) (56,68 I ) (1,439,146) 

Total 915,071 (56,68 1) 858,390 

Total Govcmmcntal Activities $ 1,122,139 $ (56,68 1) $ $ 1,065,458 

Business-T~ue Activities 

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets 

Construction in Progress $ 519,985 $ 321,23 1 $ (84 1,2 16) $ 

Land 6,232 6,232 

Total 526,217 321,231 (841,216) 6,232 
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TOWN OF COLFAX 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

Depreciable Capital Assets 

Sanitation Equ ipment 
Sanitation Improvements 
Utility Build(ngs 

Utility Equipment 

Utility Distribution System 
Accumulated Depreciation 

Total 

Beginning 

Balance 

37,254 
2,024 

9 1,631 

322,971 
5,089,157 

(3,734,947) 
1,808,091 

Additions 

61,582 
841,2) 6 

(1 10,253) 
792,545 

Disposals 
Ending 

Balance 

37,254 

2,024 
91 ,63 1 

384,553 

5,930,373 

(3,845,200) 
2,600,635 

Total Business-Type Activities $ 2,334,308 $ 1,113,776 $ (841,216) $ 2,606,867 

Depreciation expense reported by the various functions is presented as follows: 

Governmental Activities 

General Government 
Public Safety 
Streets, Drainage, & Recreation 
Total Depreciation - Governmental Activities 

Business· Tvpc Activities 
Utility System 
Sanitation 
Total Depreciation- Business-Type Activities 

NOTE 7 - ACCOUNTS PAY ABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES 

$ 1,322 
17,171 
38,188 

$ 56,681 

$ 110,253 

$ 110,253 

The following is a summary of accounts payable and accrued expenses at June 30,2019: 

Payable to Accrued 
Vendors Expenses Total 

Governmental Activities 

General Fund s 42,366 $ 4,611 $ 46,977 
LCDBG Fund 

Total Governmental £ 42,366 $ 4,611 $ 46,977 
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TOWN OF COLFAX 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

Business-Type Activities 

Utility System 
Sanitation System 

Total Business-Type 

Total Accounts Payable 

And Accrued Expenses 

NOTE 8 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

34,888 

7,607 

42,495 

$ 84,861 $ 

4,215 

4,215 

8,826 

39, 103 
7,607 

46,710 

$ 93,687 

The Town of Colfax is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These risks of loss are covered by a 
comprehensive commercial insurance policy and participation in a public entity risk pool that operates as a 
common insurance program. Claims resulting from these risks have historically not exceeded insurance 
coverage. 

NOTE 9 - CONDUIT DEBT 

To provide for the construction of a warehouse/distribution facility, land and infrastructure improvements, the 
Town of Colfax issued $2,300,000 of indebtedness to the Louisiana Department of Economic Development. 
This debt is a limited special obligation of the Town, payable solely fJ·om and secured by a pledge of rental 
income to be received from a lease agreement between the Town and Ditto Apparel of California, Inc. This 
debt does not constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the Town, and accordingly has not been 
reported in the accompanying financial statements. 

At June 30, 2019, the balance of the debt outstanding aggregated $400,000. 

NOTElO-TRANSFERS 

ln the ordinary course of business, the Town routinely transfers resources between its funds in order to cover 
expenses as necessary. The transfers arc presented as follows: 

Governmental Activities 

General Fund 
LCDBG 

Total Transfers Out 

Business-Type Activities 

Utility System 
Sanitation Fund 

Total Transfers Out 

Net Transfers 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Transfers 
In 

49,813 
22,691 
72,504 

377,3 18 

377,3 18 

$ 

$ 

Transfers 
Out 

(58,683) 
(32 1,231) 
(379,914) 

(59,788) 
(1 0,120) 

(69,908) 

Net 
T ransfers 

$ (8,870) 
(298,540) 

$ (307,4 10) 

317,530 
(10, 120) 
307,4 10 

449,822 $ (449,822) $ -----
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NOTE 11- INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAY ABLES: 

In the ordinary course of business, the Town routinely records an inte1·fund receivable and payable from the 
general fund to the utility fund. These receivables and payables are paid off at the end of each month. For 
the year ended June 30, 2019, the inter-fund balance between the funds was $0. [n the prior year, the Town 
recorded an interfund receivable and payable between the general fund and a capital projects fund, which is 
eliminated in the govemment-wide statement of net position. The interfund balance between these funds was 
$250 at June 30, 2019. 

NOTE 12- PENSION PLANS 

Substantially all employees of the Town of Colfax, Louisiana, are members of statewide retirement systems. 
These systems are cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by a separate 
board of trustees. Information regarding each plan is presented as follows: 

Deferred Deferred 
Net Pension Outflows of Inflows of 

Liability Resources Resources 

Municipal Police Employees ' Retirement System $ 114,696 $ 79,144 s 7,393 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System 273,832 96,158 44,979 

Total 388,528 175,302 52,372 
Portion Applicable to Business Type Activities 210,189 67,563 31,603 

Portion Applicable to Governmental Type Activities $ 178,339 $ 107,739 $ 20,769 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana 

Plan DescrijJiion. The System is composed of two distinct plans, Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets and 
benefit provisions. All employees of the municipality are members of Plan B. 

All permanent employees working at least 35 hours per week who are not covered by another pension plan and 
are paid wholly or in part from municipal funds and all elected municipal officials are eligible to pmt icipate in 
the System. Any person eligible for membership, but whose first employment making him eligible for 
membership in the System occurred on or after January I, 2013 shall become a member of MERS Plan B Tier 2 
of the system as a condition of employment. 

Any member of Plan B who commenced participation in the system prior to January I. 2013 can retire 
providing he meets one of the following criteria: 

1.) Any age with thirty (30) years of creditable service. 
2.) At 60 with a minimum often ( 1 0) or more years of creditable service 
3.) At any age with ten (10) years of creditable service eligible for disability benefits 
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4.) Survivor's benefits require five (5) years creditable service at death of member. 

Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan B shall consist of an 
amount equal to two percent of the member's monthly average final compensation multiplied by his years of 
creditable service. Final average compensation is the average month ly earnings during the highest sixty 
consecutive months, or joined months if se1vice was interrupted. However, under certain conditions as outlined 
in the stat11tes, the benefits are lim ited to specified amounts. 

Any member of Plan B Tier 2 shall be eligible for retirement if he meets one of the following requirements: 

1.) Seven years or more of service, at age sixty-seven (67) or thereafter. 
2.) Ten years or more of service, at age sixty-two (62) or thereafter. 
3.) Thirty years or more of service, at age fifty-five (55) or thereafter. 
4.) Twenty-five years of service credit at any age, exclusive of military service and unused annual sick leave. 

The monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan B Tier 2 shall consist of an amount 
equal to two percent of the member' s final compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service. Final 
average compensation is the average monthly eamings during the highest sixty consecutive months, or joined 
months if service was interrupted. However, under certain conditions as outlined in the statutes, the benefits arc 
limited to specified amounts. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes fi nancial statements and required 
supplementary information for the System. That report can be found by visiting the System's website, at 
mersla.com. 

Funding Policy. Under Plan B, members arc required by state statute to contribute 5.0 percent of their annual 
covered salaty and the Town of Colfax is required to contribute at an actuarially detennincd rate. Contributions 
to the System also include ont?foUJth of one percent (except Orleans and East Baton Rouge parishes) of the 
taxes shown to be collectible by the tax rolls of each parish. These tax dollars are divided between Plan A and 
Plan B based proportionately on the salaries of the active members of each plan. The System also receives 
revenue sharing funds each year as appropriated by the Legislature. These additional sources of income are 
used as additional employer contributions and considered support from non-employer contributing entit ies. The 
contribution requirements of plan members and the Town of Colfax are established and may be amended by 
state statute. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute II : 103, the employer contributions are detenn ined by 
actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal 
year. The Town's contributions to the system were equal to the required contributions for the year. 

Financial Summa1y- The plan description, funding policies and financial information provides a summary 
of the Plan provisions and finances. For additional details, the System issues an annual publicly avai lable 
standalone financial t·eport. The financial report includes inf01mation about the plan's assets, defetTed 
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fiduciary net position. The report can be 
obtained on the internet at mcrsla.com. The plans net pension liability was determined at June 30, 201 8 
(measurement date and actuarial valuation date) and details are provided as follows: 
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Total Pension Liability 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Net Pension Liability 
Town's Proportionate Share (Percentage) 
Town's Proportionate Share (Amount) 

$ 245,867,981 
$ 161,284,802 
$ 84,5 83, 179 

0.323743% 
$ 273,832 

The net pension liability presented above was not affected by any special fund ing situations. Changes in the 
Town's proportionate share of Plan's net pension liabi lity during the measurement period ending June 30, 
20 18 are provided as follows: 

Beginning Net Pension Liability $ 312,933 
Employer Contributions (31,976) 
Pension Expense 

Propottionate Share of Plan Pension 57,408 
Expense 
Changes in Proportion (11 ,976) 
Employee Contributions (8, 129) 37,303 

Changes in Deferred Outflows of Resources (30,21 0) 
Changes in Deferred Inflows of Resources (14,218) 

Ending Net Pension Liabi lity $ 273,832 

There were no changes between June 3 0, 2019 and the Plan's measurement date that are expected to have a 
significant effect on the Town's propottionate share of the collective net pension liabi lity. Balances presented 
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources reported in connection with participation 
in the plan are presented as follows: 

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Investment 

Earn ings on Pension Plan Investments 
Changes of Assumptions 
Changes in Proportion 
Employer Contributions Made Aftet· the Measurement Date 

Total Defen·als 
Deferrals That Will be Recorded as a Reduction in Net 

Pension Liability in the Subsequent Reporting Period 

Deferrals Subject to Amorrizatio11 
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Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

$ 733 

44,507 
10,247 
3,976 

36,695 

96,158 

(36,695) 

$ 59,463 

Deferred 
Inflows of Net 
Resources Amounts 
$ 12,333 (11,600) 

44,507 
10,247 

32,647 (28,671) 
36,695 

44,979 5 I, 179 

(36,695) 

$ 44,979 14,484 
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Defenals that will be amortized as a component of pension expense in future periods are summarized as 
follows: 

For the Year Ending: 
June 30, 2019 $ 12,386 
June 30, 2020 (3,319) 
June 30, 2021 4,036 
June 30, 2022 1,381 

Total $ 14,484 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment mortality 
and future salary increases. Actuaria lly determined amounts regarding the net pension liabili1y arc subject to 
continual revision as actual results arc compared to past expectations, and new estimates are made about the 
futute. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation was based on the results of an 
experience study, for the period July 2009 through June 30, 2014. 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liability as of the 
measurement date are as follows: 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 

Actuarial Assumptions: 
Investment Rate of Return 

Projected Salary Increases 

M01tality Rates -Annuitant and 
Beneficiary 

Employee Mortality 

Disabled Lives Mortality 

June 30,2018 

Entry Age Normal Cost 

7.275%, net of investment expense 

5.00% (2.60% Inflation, 2.40% Merit) 

RP-2000 Health Annuitant Sex Distinct Mortality Tables set 
forward 2 years for males and I year for females projected to 
2028 using scale AA 

For employee, the RP-2000 Disabled Lives Mortality Table 
set back 2 years for both males and females 

For disabled Annuitants, RP-2000 Disabled Lives Mortality 
Table set back 5 years for males and set back 3 years for 
females 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of 
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return by the target asset allocation percentage, adding expected inflation, and an adjustment for rhe effect of 
rebalancing/diversification. 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the System's target 
asset allocation as of June 30, 2018 are summarized in the followi ng table. 

Long-Term Expected Portfolio 
Asset Class 

Public Equity 
Public F ixed Income 

Alternatives 
Totals 

Inflation 
Expected Nominal Return 

Target Asset Allocation 
50% 
35% 
15% 

100% 

Real Rate of Return 
2.20% 
1.50% 
0.60% 
4.30% 
2.70% 
7.00% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.275%. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members wi ll be made at the current 
contribution rates and that contributions fi·om participating employers will be made at the actuarially 
determined rates, which arc calculated in accordance with relevant statues and approved by the Board of 
Trustees and the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee. Based on those assumptions, the 
System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity to changes in the discount has been determined by measuring net pension liability at a discount 
rate that is one percentage point lower and one percentage point higher than the current rate. The results are 
presented as follows: 

Net Pension Liabil ity 

1% Decrease 6.275% 
Discount Rate 

$ 359,369 

Current Discount 
Rate 7.275% 
$ 273,832 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana 

1% Increase 8.275% 
Discount Rate 
$201,115 

Plan Description. All full-time police department employees engaged in law enforcement are eligible to 
participate in the System. Members of the system before January I, 2013 are eligible for regular retirement after 
25 years of creditable service at any age, 20 years of creditable service after age 50, or 12 years of creditable 
service after age 55. Benefit rates are three and one-third percent of average fi nal compensation (average 
monthly earnings during the highest 36 months or joined months if service was interrupted) per number of 
years of creditable service not to exceed I 00% of final salar-y. Upon the death of an active contributing member, 
or disability retiree, the plan provides for surviving spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions 
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outlined in the statutes, the benefits range from forty to sixty percent of the member's average final 
compensation for the surviving spouse. 

For membership after January 1, 2013, member eligibility for regular retirement, early retirement, disability, 
and survivor benefits are based on Hazardous Duty and Non-Hazardous Duty subplans. Under the Hazardous 
Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member ofthe System and has 25 
years of creditable service at any age or has 12 years of creditable service at age 55. Under the Non-Hazardous 
Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular t·etirement after he has been a member of the System and has 30 
years of creditable service at any age, 25 years of creditable service at age 55, or I 0 years of creditable service 
at age 60. Under both sub plans, a member is eligible for early retirement after he has been a member of the 
System for 20 years of creditable service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit from age 55. 

Under the Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Duty Sub plans, the benefit rates are three percent and two and a half 
percent, respectively, of average fina l compensation (average monthly earnings during the highest 60 
consecutive months of joined months if service was interrupted) per number of years of creditable service not to 
exceed I 00% of final salary. Upon death of an active member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for 
surviving spouses and minor children, subject to cetiain conditions outlined in the statutes. 

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary infom1ation for the System. That repo1t can be found by visiting the System's website, at 
lampers.org. 

Funding Policy. Contributions for all members are actuarially determ ined as required by state law but cannot 
be less than 9% of the employee's earnable compensation excluding overtime but including state supplemental 
pay. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, total contributions due from employers and employees was 38.75 for Non­
Hazardous Duty Members hired after Januaty 1, 2013, and 40.75% for all other members. The employer and 
employee contribution rates for all members hired prior to January 1, 201 3 and Hazardous Duty members hired 
after January 1, 2013 were 30.75% and 10% respectively. The employer and employee contribution rates for all 
Non-Hazardous Duty members hired after January 1, 2013, were 30.75% and 8.0 % respectively. The employer 
and employee contribution rates for all members whose eamable compensation is less than or equal to the 
poverty guidelines issued by the United States Department of Health and Human Services were 33.25% and 
7.5% respectively. 

The System also receives insurance premium tax monies as additional employer contributions. The tax is 
considered support fi·om a non-contributing entity and appropriated by the legislature each year based on an 
actuarial study. Non-employer contributions were recognized as revenue during the year ended June 30, 2018, 
and excluded from pension expense. 

Financial Summary- The plan description, funding policies and financial information provides a summary 
of the Plan provisions and finances. For additional details, the System issues an annual publicly available 
standalone financial report. The financial rep01t includes information about the plan's assets, defcn·ed 
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fiduciary net position. The plans net 
pension liability was detennined at June 30,2018 (measurement date and actuarial valuation date) and details 
are provided as follows: 
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Total Pension Liability 
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Net Pension Liability 
Town's Proportionate Share (Percentage) 
Town's Prop011ionate Share (Amount) 

$3,007,181 ,3 18 
$2,161,775,206 
$ 845,406, I 12 

0.0135670 
$ I 14,696 

The net pension liability presented above was not affected by any special funding situations. 
Changes in the Town' s prop011ionate share of Plan's net pension liability during the measurement period 
ending June 30, 20 I 8 are provided as follows: 

Beginning Net Pension Liabil ity $ 120,752 
Employer Contributions (12,324) 
Pension Expense 

Proportionate Share of Plan Pension 17,080 
Expense 
Changes in Proportion 25,853 
Employee Contributions (2,677) 40,256 

Changes in Defe1-red Outflows of Resources (27,523) 
Changes in Deferred fnflows of Resources (6,465) 

Ending Net Pension Liability $ 114,696 

There were no changes between June 30,2019 and the Plan's measurement date that are expected to have a 
significant effect on the Town' s proportionate share of the collective net pension liabi li ty. Balances presented 
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources reported in connection with participation 
in the plan are presented as follows: 

Differences Between Expected ancl Actual Experience 
Net Difference Between Projedcd and Actual Investment 

Earnings on Pension Plan Investments 
Changes of Assumptions 
Changes in Proportion 
Employer Contributions Made After the Measmement Date 

Total Deferrals 
Deferrals That Will be Recorded as a Reduction in Net 

Pension Liability in the Subsequent Reporting Period 

Deferrals Subject to Amortization 
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Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

$ 517 

5,498 
7,495 

52,727 
12,907 

79, 144 

(12,907) 

$ 66,237 

Deferred 
Inflows of Net 
Resources Amounts 

$ 5,861 (5,344) 

5,498 
7,495 

1,532 51,195 
12,907 

7,393 7 1,75 1 

(1 2,907) 

$ 7,393 58,844 
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Dcrcrrals that will be amortized as a component of pension expense in future periods are summarized as 
follows: 

For the Year Ending: 
June 30, 20 19 $ 32,540 
June 30, 2020 29,738 
June 30, 2021 (3,633) 
June 30, 2022 199 

Total $ 58,844 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probabi lity of events far into the future . Examples include assumptions about future employment rnm1ality 
and future salary increases. Actuarially determined amounts regarding the net pension liability are subject to 
continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations, and new estimates are made about the 
future. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,2018 valuation was based on the results of an 
experience study, for the period July 2009 through June 30, 2014. 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension liabi lity as of the 
measurement date are as follows: 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial Cost Method 

Investment Rate of Return 

Expected Remaining Service 
Lives 

Inflation Rate 

Projected Salary Increases 
(including Merit & Inflation) 

June 30, 20 18 

Entry Age Normal Cost 

7.20%. net of investment expense 

2018 - 4 years 
2017-4 years 
2016 -4 years 
20 I 5 - 4 years 

2.60 % 

Years of Service ( 1-2) 9.75%, (3-23) 4.75%, (23+) 4.25% 

-38-



TOWN OF COLFAX 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 301 2019 

M01tality Rates 

Cost-of-Living Adjustments 

RP-2000 Combined Health with Blue Collar Adjustment Sex 
Distinct Tables Project to 2029 by Scale AA (Set-back I 
year for females) for health annuitants & beneficiaries 

RP-2000 Disabled Lives Table set back 5 years for males 
and set back 3 years for females for disabled annuitants 

R.P-2000 Employee Table set back 4 years for males and 3 
years for females for active members 

The present value of future reti rement benefits is based on 
benefits currently being paid by the System and includes 
previously granted cost-of-living increases. The present 
values do not include provisions for potential future 
increases not yet authorized by the Board of Trustees 

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the System 's target 
asset allocation as of June 30, 2018 arc summarized in the following table. 

Asset Class 
Public Equity 

Public Fixed Income 
Alternatives 

Other 
Totals 

Inflation 
Expected Nominal Return 

Target Asset Allocation 
52.00% 
22.00% 
20.00% 
6.00% 

100.00% 

Long-Term Expected Portfolio 
Real Rate of Return 

3.58% 
0.46% 
1.07% 
0.17% 
5.28% 
2.75% 
8.03% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.20%. The projection of cash flows used to 
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the cu!Tent 
contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the actuarially 
determined rates, which are calculated in accordance with relevant statues and approved by the Board of 
Trustees and the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee. Based on those assumptions, the 
System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity to changes in the discount has been determined by measuring net pension liability at a discount 
rate that is one percentage point lower and one percentage point higher than the current rate. The results are 
presented as fo llows: 

Net Pension Liability 

I% Decrease 6.20% 
Discount Rate 

$ 161 ,1 80 

-39-

Current Discount 
Rate 7.20% 
$ 11 4,696 

1% Increase 8.20% 
Discount Rate 

$75,698 
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NOTE 13-GRANTREVENUES 

As with most municipalities with diverse operations, the Town of Colfax regularly receives grant revenues 
related to various aspects of the Town's operations. 

The Town had three ongoing grants in the current year. An LCDBG grant was awarded to the town fat the 
construction of a Ground Storage Water Tank in the prior year, and was completed during the current year. 
The Town also received monies from CWEF and from LGAP fat· the purchase of utility system equipment. 

NOTE 14 - CONTINGENCIES 

Existing conditions that may have financial consequences in the future are referred to as contingencies. 
Contingencies existing at June 30, 2019 are described as fo llows: 

Litigation 
Like most governmental units with extensive and diverse operations, the Town is occasionally named as a 
defendant in litigation. Based on consultation with the Town Attorney and insurance carrier, there are no 
anticipated claims that arc expected to exceed available insurance coverage. 

Grant Compliance 
The Town receives state and federa l assistance through various grant programs. Management is confident 
that aJI significant grant conditions have been met; however, grantor agencies routinely review grant activity 
and could request reimbursement if a dispute occurs regarding compliance with grant conditions. 

NOTE 15- 0 N-BEHALF PAYMENTS 

The State of Louisiana prov ides supplemental pay for public safety employees that meet certain 
requirements. Amounts reported as revenue and expenditures in connection with State Supplemental Pay are 
$6,000. 
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General Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Budget and Actual 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Variance with 
final Budget 

Budget Amounts Actual Positive 

Orisinal Final Amounts (Nesative) 

Revenues: 
Taxes 

Ad valorem $ 120,000 $ 120,000 $ I I 8, t 79 $ ( 1,821) 
Sales taxes 315,000 320,000 325,495 5,495 

License and permits 
Occupational licenses 66,000 50,000 61,574 11 ,574 
Franchise fees 65,000 70,000 63 293 (6,707) 

Fines and fees 48,000 25,000 23,806 (I ,194) 
Rent 1,200 1,200 ( I ,200) 
lntf.ltgoveromental 

Beer taxes 4,500 5,000 3,450 (I ,550) 
Payment in lieu of taxes 9,000 9,037 10, 196 1,159 
Other Intergovernmental 7,500 91,523 10,150 (8 1 ,373) 

Other 7,150 20,000 16,723 (3,277) 
Interest 250 250 {250) 

Totnl revenues 643,600 712,010 632,866 (79,144) 

Expenses: 
General government 3 11 ,600 338,200 257,505 80,695 
Public Safety 193,500 178,500 180,211 ( 1,71 1) 
Streets and Drainage 110,000 114,000 177,159 (63, l 59) 
Recreati.on 13,500 6,200 6,200 
Debt Service 11 ,495 (1 1 ,495) 
Capital Outlay 15,000 228,665 228,665 

Total Expenses 643.600 865,565 626.370 239 195 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures ( 153,555) 6,496 160,051 

Other finllncing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 60,000 8,000 49,8 13 41,813 
Operating transfers out (60,000) (85,000) (58,683) 26,317 

Totnl other financing sources (uses) (77,000) (8,870) 68,130 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues nnd 
other finan cing sources over 
expenditures and other uses (230,555) (2,374) 228,181 

Fund bnlnncc- beginning of year 347 230,555 230,555 

Fund balance- end ofyenr $ 347 $ $ 228,181 $ 2281181 

-41-



TOWN OF COLFAX 

Schedule of Net Pension Liability Data 

Cost Sha ring Retirement Systems 

Share of Collective 

Retirement System I Net Pension Liability 

Measurement Date Percent Amount 

Muncipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
June 30,2014 0.000000% 
June 30, 20 15 0.000000% 
June 30, 201 6 0.000000% 
June 30,2017 0.01383 1% 120,750 
June 30, 201 8 0.126391% 114,696 

Muncipa1 Employees' Reti rement System 
June 30,2014 0.383300% 179,963 
June 30,201 5 0.3 86136% 262,437 
June 30,201 6 0.415877% 344,724 
June 30, 20 I 7 0.361674% 312,932 
June 30, 2018 0.323740% 273,830 

Pension Plans 
Net Pension Fiduciary Net ?osirion 
Liability as a as a Percentage of 
Percentage of Total Pension 

Covered Payroll Covered Payroll Liability 

0.0% 75. 1% 
0.0% 66.0% 
0.0% 70. 1 o/o 

41,291 292.4% 70.1% 
40,039 286.5% 70.1 o/o 

260,697 69.0% 76.9% 
299,646 87.6% 68.7% 
305,547 112.8% 63.3% 
310,842 100.7% 63.5% 
334,621 81.8% 63.5% 

r - :J Notes to Schedule: 
I At the present time, management has not identified any factors that are expected to sign ificantly affect trends in 
1 the amounts reported above. 
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Schedule of Employer Contributions 

Cost Sharing Reti'rement Systems 

Statuatorily Contributions 
Retirement System I Required Employer Recognized By the 

Fiscal Year Ending Contributions 

Muncipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

June 30, 2014 

June 30,2015 

June 30, 2016 

June 30,2017 

June 30,2018 

Muncipal Employees' Retirement System 

June 30, 2014 

June 30,2015 

June 30, 201 6 

June 30, 2017 

June30, 2018 

Notes to Schedule: 

13,110 

12,3 12 

22,8 11 

25,453 

29,027 

29,530 

31,789 

Pension Plan 

13,11 0 

12,312 

22,8 11 

25,453 

29,027 

29,530 

3 1,789 

Difference 

Between 
Required and 
Recognized 

Contributions 
Covered 
Payroll 

41,291 

40,039 

260,697 

299,646 

305,547 

310,842 

239,914 

At the present time, management has not identified any factors that are expected to significantly affect 
trends in the amounts reported above. 
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Contributions 
Recognized as a 

Percentage of 
Covered Payroll 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

31.75% 

30.75% 

8.75% 

8.50% 

9.50% 

9.50% 

13.25% 



TOWN OF COLFAX 

Schedule of Compensation Paid to Board Members 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Gerald Hami lton $ 

Alan Futrell 
Cora Reed 
LoJTaine Sapp 
LoUI·ain Lacour 
Zelda Baines 

Total Compensation $ 

-44-

14,400 
4,500 
4,500 
4,500 
4,500 
4,500 

36,900 



TOWN OF COLFAX 

Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments 

to Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer 

Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Agency Head (Mayor) ~Gerald Hamilton 

Purpose: 

Compensation $ 

Benefits 

Reimbursements 

Total $ 

-45-

14,400 

3,118 

853 

18,371 



TOWN OF COLFAX 

Management's Co"ective Action Plan 
June 30, 2019 

Part I - Summary of Auditor's Results: 

• The Independent Auditor' s Report on the general-purpose financial statements for the Town of Colfax, Louisiana, as 
of June 30, 2019, and for the year then ended expressed an unqualified opinion. 

• Tile audit disclosed two findings (20 l 9- I and 20 19-3) which arc considered to be significant deticiencies ln internal 
control over financial reporting. 

• The audit disclosed four findings which are considered to be instances of noncompliance with applicable laws and 
regulations (20 19-2, 2019-3, 20 19-4, and 20 I 9-5). 

• The Town was not required to have a Single Audit; therefore, none of the reporting requirements of OMB Circular 
A-133 was required. 

Part Jl - Findings Relating to the Financial Statemen ts Which are Required to be Reported in Accordance with 
Generally Accepted Governmental Auditing Standards: 

Finding 2019-1 - The Legislative Auditor issued a complinncc review, dated October 29, 2008. In the application of their Checklist 
of Best Practices, the following was noted und remains unresolved: 

I. Natural Gas Losses: "Management is to continue its efforts to identify the causes of the natural gas losses." 

Finding 2012-2: PAyroll Policies 
In the current year, the Town paid its employees overtime for amounts over 40 hou,·s a week, even if the employee utilized sick or 
vacation leave to achieve the 40-hour week total. The Fair Labor Standards Act states that all overtimc-cove,·ed employees be puid an 
overtime wage of 1.5 times their normal hourly wage for all hours physically worked in a single week's time. 

Finding 201 9-3: Personal Usc of Town Assets nnd Policy Violations 
In the current year, the Town Utility Superintendent stored several woshing machines in a town facility, which were meant for his 
personal usc to sale. By doing this, the Superintendent accepted a thing of value (I.E. the storage of the washing machines) in the 
course of his employment as the Town's Utility Superintendent. 

Finding 2012-4: Policy Violations 
During audit fieldwork, it was discovered that Police Department Employees have been sleeping while on the clock. As there is no 
provision for "On-Call'' pay in U1e Town's personnel manual. this may have constituted impermissible payments to individuals who 
were not activity engaged in tasks necessary to perform the duties of their employment, In addition, during audit fieldwork, it was 
discovered that the Pol ice Department left some evidence in an unlocked file cabinet, which could interfere in active investigations or 
potcnttally lend to evidence being tampered with. 

Finding 2019-5: Technical Budget Violation 
In the current year, General Fund actual revenues and other sources were 5. 18% less than budgeted amOL!ntS. This is a violation of the 
Local Government Gudgel Act. 

-46-



TOWN OF COLFAX 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

SECTION 1 
INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE MATERIAL TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 

Finding 2019-1 - The Legislative Auditor issued a 
compliance review, dated October 29, 2008. In tlte appl ication 
of their Checklist of Best Practices, the following was noted 
and remains unresolved: 

I. Natural Gas Losses: "Management is to continue its 
efforts to identify the causes of the natural gas 
losses." 

Finding 2019-2: Payroll Policies 
In the current year, the Town paid its employees ove1t ime for 
amounts over 40 hours a week, even If the employee utilized 
sick or vacation leave to achieve the 40-hour week total. The: 
Fai1· Labor Standards Act states that nil overtime-covered 
employees be paid an overtime wage ol I .5 times their normal 
hourly wage for all hours physically worked in a singlu week's 
time. 

Finding 2019-3: Personal Usc of Town Assets nnd Policy 
Violations 
In the current year, the Town Utility Superintendent stored 
several washing machines in a town faci lity, which were meant 
for his personal usc to st~lc. 

Finding 20J9-4: Policy Violations 
During audit fieldwork, it was discovered that Pol ice 
Department Bmployces have been sleeping while on the clock. 
As there is no provision for "On-Call'' pay in the Town's 
personnel manual, this may have constituted impermissible 
payments to individuals who were not activity engaged in tasks 
necessary to perform the duties of their employment. In 
addition, during audit fieldwork, it was discovered that the 
Police Department Jell some evidence in an un locked file 
cabinet, which could interfere in active investigations or 
potentially lead to ev idence being tampered with. 

Finding 2019~5: Technical Budget Vlolntion 
In the current year, Genera l Fund actual revenues and other 
sources were 5.18% less than budgeted nmounts. This is n 
violation of the Local Government Budget Act. 

Response: 
We are continuing to diligently work with our natural gas 
supplier as well as performing leak surveys and working to fix 
all leaks in order to control the losses. We will continue to 
monitor our losses and address issues as they appear 

Response: 
The Town will immediately conform to the Fair Labor 
Standards Act. In addition, we are in the process of updating our 
personnel policy. 

Response: 
The Utility Superintendent wns released from his position. The 
Town doesn' t anticipate any issues of a similar nature in the 
future. 

Response: 
The Town will update and enforce its personnel policy, to 
enable the Town to address the deficiencies found in the audit. 

Response: 
The Town will mon: closely moni tor its budg~t rrom month to 
mon th, to ensut·c future budgetary compliance. 

SECTION II 
MANAGEMENT LETTER 

ML-1-2019, Natural Gas Losses: 
Over the nine-year period gas losses have ranged from 28.7% to 
43.5%. Such losses arc costly and may be dangerous to the 
public. Possible explanations for thu loss of gas are leakage: 
and/or worn out meters that do not accurately measure the 
amount of gas delivered to customers. 

Response: 
We are continuing to diligently work with our natural gas 
supplier as well as performing leak surveys and working to fix 
all leaks in order to control the losses. We will continue to 
monitor our losses and address issues as they IIJ.lpear. 
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TOWN OF COLFAX 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30,2019 

ML-2-2019, Personnel Policies 
Because of issues found during the current year's audit, we 
recommend that tl1e Town adopt a new payroll policy addressing 
issues related to overtime and the proper usc of town vehicles. 

ML-3-2019. Compensnted Absences: 
During our work on the Town's compensatl!d absences, we 
noted that the compensated absence balance has gl'own into a 
large dollar amount. We recommend management look at the 
policies in place: to determine if changes need to be made in 
order to limit future linbility. 

Res1)0n~e: 

The Town will adopt a. new payroll policy, and monitor 
employee's adherence to the policy cl!rcfully .. 

Response: 
We will review our policies to dctormine if the policies need to 
be revised 10 limit future increases and liability. 
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TOWN OF COLFAX 

Summary of Prior Year Findings 
June 30, 2019 

SECTION I 
INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE MATERIAL TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. 

Finding 2018-1 - The Legislative Auditor issued a 
compliance review, dated October 29, 2008. In the 
application of their Checklist of Best Practices, the following 
was noted and remains unresolved: 

I. Natural Gas Losses: "Management is to continue 
its eiTorts to identify the causes of the nntu ral gas 
losses." 

Status: Unresolved 
We arc continuing to diligently work with our natural gas 
supplier as well as performing leak surveys and working to fix 
all leaks in order to control the losses. We wi ll continue to 
monitor our losses and address issues as they appear. 

FJndi ng 2018-2: Utility Cutoff Stntus: Resolved 
Management has not developed or enforced a uniform cut-off 
policy. During audit procedures it was noted thnt n town 
employee did not have utility service cutoff, though the 
employee owed a balance past the cutoff date. 

Finding 2018-3: J•ayroll Policies Stntus: Pnrtinlly Resolved - Sec Finding 2019-2 
In the current year, the Town did not follow its personnel 
policy in regurds to employees utilizing a time clock, and the 
computation of compensatory time. In addition, control 
deficiencies were identified regarding the approval of time 
cards submitted by employees, the approval of time cards 
submitted by department heads, the approval of overtime 
worked by employees, and the town's lack of a hmit on hours 
and shifts worked consecutively by its employees. 

SECTION Jl 
MANAGEMENT LETTER 

ML-1-2018, Nntura l Gns Losses: 
Over the nine-year period gas losses have ranged from 15.3% to 
43.5%. Such lossts arc costly and may be dangerous to the 
public. Possible cxplannrions for the loss of gas are leakage 
and/or worn out meters that do not accurately measure the 
amount of gas delivered to customers. 

Ml.rZ.2018, Utility C utoff Procedure~: 

During our wotk on the Town's utility system, we noted that 
past due utility bills are still at a high level. We nre concerned 
that these increases may be attributable to 1.1 lack of enforcing a 
uniform cutoff policy. Our test work also showed that some 
employees are slow to pay their bills. We recommend the Town 
strictly enforce a uniform cutoff policy. 

ML-3-1018, Compensated Absences: 
During our work on the Town's compensated absences, we 
noted that the compensated absence balance has grown into a 
large dollar amount. We recommend management look at the 
policies in place to detem1inc if changes need to be made in 
order to limit future liability. 

Unsolved: 
We are continuing to diligently work with our natural gas 
supplier as well as performing leak surveys and working to fix 
all lcnks in order to control the losses. We will continue to 
monitor our losses and address issue~ us they appear. 

Rc~olvcd 

Unresolved: 
We will review our policies to determine if the policies need 
to be revised to limit future increases and liability. 
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To the Town of Colfax and 
the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

Rozier Harrington 
& McKay I cERTIFIED pusuc I 

ACCOUNTANTS 

Independent Accountant's Report 
On Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures 

We have perfol1lled the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the Town of Colfax (Entity) and the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified in the LLA's Statewide 
Agreed-Upon Procedures (SA UPs) for the fiscal period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019. The Entity' s management is 
responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SA UPs. 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. The 
sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified users of this report. Consequently, we make 
no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report 
has been requested or for any other purpose. 

The procedures and associated results are presented in the accompanying Schedule of Procedures, Results and 
Managements' Response. 

We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which would be the expression of 
an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such 
an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures; other matters might have come to our attention that 
would have been reported to you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing perfom1cd on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs, 
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, this report is not 
suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public 
document. 

~~~ ~~/~~ 
Rozier, Harrington and McKay 
Certified Public Accountants 
Alexandria, Louisiana 
August 2, 2019 

Post Office Box 12 178 • Alex andria, Louisiana 713 15·2178 
www.CenlaCPAs.com • Voice 318.442.1608 • Fax 318A87.2027 

-Al-



Town of Colfax 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
Schedule of Procedures, Results and Managements' Response 

Agreed-Upon Procedure 

Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and 
procedures and observe that they address each of 
the following categories and subcategories. 

• Budgeting 
• Purchasing 
• Disbursements 
• Receipts 
• PayroiVPersonnel 
• Contracting 
• Credit Cards 
• Travel and expense reimbursements 
• Ethics 
• Debt 
• Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity 

Written Policies and Procedures 

Results 

The Town has written procedures regarding the 
following functions, including all specified 
components: 

• Disbursements 
• PayroiVPersonnel 

The Town has written procedures regarding the 
following functions, but did not have all specified 
components. 

• Credit Cards 
• Travel and Expense Reimbursements 

The Town does not have written procedures 
regarding the following functions: 

• Budgeting 
• Purchasing 
• Receipts 
• Contracting 

I • Ethics 
• Debt Service 
• Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity 

- A2-

Ma nagements' Response 
The Town will examine their w r i tten procedure s and 
the Legislative Auditor's "Bes t Pra c t ices" and 

develop written poUcies for the specified functions . 



Town of Colfax 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
Schedule of Procedures1 Results and Managements' Response 

2 

Agreed-Upon Procedure 

Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee 
minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent 
document in effect during the fiscal period, and: 

Board (or Finance Committee) 

Results 

In the prior year, the entity's AUP report contained 
no exceptions in this category. As such, RHM has 
excluded this category from testing in the current 
year. 

a) Observe that the board/finance committee met See Comments Above. 
with a quorum at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the board's 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other 
equivalent documenL 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental See Comments Above. 
accounting model, observe that the minutes 
referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual 
comparisons on the general fund and major 
special revenue funds, as well as monthly 
financial statements (or budget-to-actual 
comparisons, if budgeted) for major proprietary 
funds. Alternately, for those entities reporting 
on lhe non-profit accounting model, observe 
that the minutes referenced or included 
financial activity relating to public funds if 
those public funds comprised more than I 0% of 
the emity 's collections during the fiscal period. 

-A3 -

Managements' Response 

The results di d not con tain any critical comments. 

The results did not include finding s or criticisms. 

The results did not i nclude findings or criticisms. 



Town of Colfax 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
Schedule of Procedures, Results and Managements' Response (Continued) 

Board (or Finance Committee) 

Agreed-Upon Procedure Results Managements' Response 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year See Comments Above. The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

audit report and observe the unrestricted fund 
balance in the general fund. If the general fund 
had a negative ending unrestricted fund balance 
in the prior year audit report, observe that the 
minutes for at least one meeting during the 
fiscal period referenced or included a formal 
plan to eliminate the negative unrestricted fund 
balance in the general fund. 

-A4-



Town of Colfax 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
Schedule of Procedures, Results and Managements' Response 

3 

Agreed-Upon Procedure 

Obtain a listing of client bank accounts for the 
fiscal period from management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask 
management to identify the entity's main operating 
account. Select the entity's main operating 
account and randomly select 4 additional accounts 
(or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select 
one month from the fiscal period, obtain and 
inspect the corresponding bank statement and 
reconciliation for selected each account. and 
observe that: 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they 
were prepared within 2 months of the related 
statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated, 
electronically logged); 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a 
member of management/board member who 
docs not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue 
checks bas reviewed each bank reconciliation 
(e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); 
and 

c) Management has documentation reflecting that it 
bas researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months from the 
statement closing date, if applicable. 

Bank Reconciliations 

Results 

RHM has obtained a listing of the Town's bank 
account and sele.cted five for testing. 

There is no evidence that the bank reconciliations 
were prepared within 2 months of the related 
statement closing date. 

There is no evidence that a member of 
management reviewed each bank reconciliation. 

It is normally Town policy to void checks that 
have been outstanding for more than six months. 
However, the Town could not locate any 
documentation reflecting research on any 
outstanding checks, or recently voided checks that 
have been outstanding for six months. 

-AS -

Managements' Response 
The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

Tho Town Clerk will begin to sign and date the 

reconciliations when p e rformed. 

The Town will have a board membor review and 
approve all reconciliations. 

The Town will begin to document and retain research 
pertaining to checks outstanding longer than six 

months. 



Town of Colfax 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
Schedule of Procedures, Results and Managements' Response 

4 

Agreed-Upon Procedure 

Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal 
period where deposits for cash/checks/money 
orders (cash) are prepared and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. 
Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites 
if less than 5). 

5 For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of 
collection locations and management' s 
representation that the listing is complete. 
Randomly select one collection location for each 
deposit site (i.e. 5 collection locations for 5 deposit 
sites), obtain and inspect written policies and 
procedures relating to employee job duties (if no 
written policies or procedures, inquire of 
employees about their job duties) at each 
collection location, and observe that job duties are 
properly segregated at each collection location 
such that: 

a) Employees that are responsible for cash 
collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

CoUectioos 

Results 

A list of deposit sites and collection locations has 
been furnished and management has represented 
that the list is complete. 

The facility includes one cash register for all 
employees to use. 

-A6-

Managements' Response 

The results did not include findings or c:riticisms. 

Due to the size of the Town's workforce and 
limitations i mposed by the fac;ifities, sharing a cash 

register is necessary. However. the Town will review 
its polici es, and determine whether addi tional 
registers are appropriate. 



Town of Co/Fax 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
Schedule of Procedures~ Results and Managements' Response (Continued) 

6 

7 

Agreed-Upon Procedure 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash 
is not responsible for preparing/making bank 
deposits, unless another employee/official is 
responsible for reconciling collection 
documentation (e.g. pre-numbered receipts) to 
the deposit 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash 
is not responsible for posting collection entries 
to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, 
unless another employee/official is responsible 
for reconciling Ledger postings to each other and 
to the deposit. 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling 
cash collections to the general ledger and/or 
subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or 
agency fund additions are not responsible for 
collecting cash, unless another employee 
verifies the reconciliation. 

Inquire of management that all employees who 
have access to cash are covered by a bond or 
insurance policy for theft. 

Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 
5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 under 
"Bank Reconciliations" above (select the next 
deposit date chronologically if no deposits were 
made on the dates randomly selected and 
randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are 
made on the same day). Alternately, the 
practitioner may use a source document other than 
bank statements when selecting the deposit dates 

Collections 

Results 

The same employee responsible for preparing 
deposits occasionally collects cash receipts. 

The same employee who posts collection entries to 
the general ledger and reconciles ledger postings 
to deposits occasionally collects cash receipts. 

The same employee who reconciles cash 
collections to the general ledger occasionally 
collects cash receipts. No other employee verifies 
the reconciliation. 

The administrative staff is covered by a bond 
policy that protects against theft. 

RHM randomly selected two deposit dates for 
testing. 

- A7 -

Managements' Response 
B e ca use of the limited s ize of offlce staH, 

segregation of duties c an be limi ted . However. d irect 
s upervision by the Mayor compensa tes for the lat::k 

of segregation of duties. 

Because of the limi ted size of offlce staff, 
segrega tion of duties can be l imited. How eve r, d i rect 
s upervision by the Mayor compe nsates for t he lack 

of segregation of duti e s. 

Because of the limi ted size of office staff, 

segregation of duties ca n be limited. However. direct 
supervision by tlte M;~yor c ompensates for t he lac k 

of segreg a tion of duties. 

The results did not include findings or criti c isms. 

The t'esults did not incl ude findings or criticisms. 



Town of Colfax 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
Schedule of Procedures1 Results and Managements1 Response (Continued) 

Agreed- Upon Procedure 

for testing, such as a cash collection log, daily 
revenue report, receipt book, etc. Obtain 
supporting documentation for each of the I 0 
deposits and: 

CoUections 

Results 

a. Observe that receipts are sequentially pre- The Town keeps sequentially numbered receipts. 
numbered. 

b. Trace sequentially pre-numbered 
system reports, and other related 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

receipts, 
collection 

c. Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit 
per the bank statement. 

d. Observe that the deposit was made within one 
business day of receipt at the collection location 
(within one week if the depository is more than 
10 miles from the collection location or the 
deposit is less than $100). 

e. Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement 
to the general ledger. 

The receipt totals matched the totals on deposit 
slips. 

The deposit slip totals matched the actual deposits 
per the bank statement. 

Deposits were made within one business day of 
receipt. 

RHM traced the actual deposit per the bank 
statement to the general ledger, and found no 
discrepancies. 

- AS -

Managements' Response 

The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

The results d id n o t include findings or criticisms. 

The results did not include findings or criticisms. 



Town of Colfax 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
Schedule of Procedures, Results and Managements' Response 

Non-Payroll Disbursements - General (excluding credit card/debit card/fuel card/P-Card purcbases or payments) 

8 

Agreed-Upon Procedure 

Obtain a listing of locations that process payments 
for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. 
Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less 
than 5). 

9 For each location selected under #8 above, obtain 
a listing of those employees involved with non­
payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain 
written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if the agency has no written 
policies and procedures, inquire of employees 
about their job duties), and observe that job duties 
are properly segregated such that: 

Results 

In the prior year, the entity's AUP report contained 
no exceptions in this category. As such, RHM has 
excluded this category from testing in the current 
year. 

a) At least two employees are involved in See Comments Above. 
initiating a purchase request, approving a 
purchase, and placing an order/making the 
purchase. 

b) At least two employees are involved in ' See Comments Above. 
processing and approving payments to vendors. 

c) Tbe employee responsible for processing See Comments Above. 
payments is prohibited from adding/modifying 
vendor files, unless another employee IS 

responsible for periodically reviewing changes 
to vendor files. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for See Comments Above. 
signing checks mails the payment or gives the 
signed checks to an employee to mail who is not 
responsible for processing payments. 

-A9-

Managements' Response 
The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

The results d i d not include findings or criticisms. 

The r esults d i d not include finding s or criticism s. 

The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

The results did not includ e findings or criticisms. 



Town of Colfax 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
Schedule ofProcedures1 Results and Managements1 Response (Continued) 

Non-Payroll Disbursements-General (excluding credit card/debit card/fuel card/P-Card purchases or payments) 

Agreed-Upon Procedure Results Managements' Response 

10 For each location selected under #8 above, obtain 
the entity's non-payroll disbursement transaction 
population (excluding cards and travel 
reimbursements) and obtain management's 
representation that the population IS complete. 
Randomly select 5 disbursements for each 
location, obtain supporting documentation for each 
transaction and: 

a. Observe that the disbursement matched the See Comments Above. The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

related original invoice/billing statement. 
b. Observe that the disbursement documentation See Comments Above. The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

included evidence (e.g., initial/date, electronic 
logging) of segregation of duties tested under 
#9, as applicable. 

-A10-



Town of Colfax 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
Schedule of Procedures, Results and Managements' Response 

Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards!P-Cards 

Agreed-Upon Procedure Results Managements' Response 

11 Obtain from management a listing of all active Management represented that the list provided was The r esults did not Include findings or criticisms. 

credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P- complete. 
cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the 
card numbers and the names of the persons who 
maintained possession of the cards. Obtain 
management's representation that the listing is 
complete. 

12 Using the listing prepared by management, 
randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) 
that were used during the fiscal period. Randomly 
select one monthly statement or combined 
statement for each card (for a debit card, randomly 
select one monthly bank statement), obtain 
supporting documentation, and: 

a. Observe that there is evidence that the monthly The credit card statement is approved by the Town 
statement or combined statement and supporting Clerk; however, the Town Clerk is a cardholder. 
documentation (e.g., original receipts for 
credit/debit card purchases, exception reports for 
excessive fuel card usage) was reviewed and 
approved, in writing, by someone other than the 
authorized card holder. 

b. Observe that fmance charges and late fees were The statements examined did not have finance 
not assessed on the selected statements. charges or late fees assessed. 

-All.-

The Town will have a member of management other 

than the authorized card holder review the s tatement 
and document their review. 

The results did not include findings or c riticisms. 



Town of Colfax 
State wide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
Schedule of Procedures:~ Results and Managements!! Response (Continued) 

Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards!P-Cards 

Agreed-Upon Procedure Results Managements' Response 

13 Using the monthly statements or combined Each transaction was supported by an itemized The Town will document fhe business purpose of 

statements selected under # 12 above, excluding receipt, and had a clear business purpose. transacti ons on fhe face of the statement. 

fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all However, there was no written documentation 
transactions if less than l 0) from each statement, supporting the business/public purpose. 
and obtain supporting documentation for the 
transactions (i .e. each card should have 10 
transactions subject to testing). For each 
transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely 
what was purchased, (2) written documentation of 
the business/public purpose, and (3) 
documentation of the individuals participating in 
meals (for meal charges only). 

- Al.2 -



Town of Colfax 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
Schedule of Procedures, Results and Managements' Response 

14 

Agreed-Upon Procedure 

Obtain from management a listing of all travel and 
travel-related expense reimbursements during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that 
the listing or general ledger is complete. 
Randomly select 5 reimbursements, obtain the 
related e>.:pense reimbursement forms/prepaid 
expense documentation of each selected 
reimbursement, as well as the supporting 
documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements 
selected: 

Travel and Expense Reimbursement 

Results 

In the prior year, the entity's AUP report contained 
no exceptions in this category. As such, RHM bas 
excluded this category from testing in the current 
year. 

a If reimbursed using a per diem, agree the See Comments Above. 
reimbursement rate to those rates established 
either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. 
General Services Administration (www.gsa.gov). 

b. If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the See Comments Above. 
reimbursement 1s supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what 
was purchased. 

c. Observe that each reimbursement is supported by See Comments Above. 
documentation of the business/public purpose 
(for meal charges, observe that the 
documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other 
documentation required by written policy 
{procedure #lh). 

d Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed See Comments Above. 
and approved, in writing, by someone other than 
the person receiving reimbursement. 

-Al3-

Managements' Response 

The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

The results did not include findings or criticis ms. 

The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

The results did not include findings or criticisms. 
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Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
Schedule of Procedures, Results and Managements' Response (Continued) 
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Agreed-Upon Procedure 

Obtain from management a listing of all 
agreements/contracts for professional services, 
materials and supplies, leases, and construction 
activities that were initiated or renewed during the 
fiscal period. Alternately, the practitioner may use 
an equivalent selection source, such as an active 
vendor list. Obtain management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 
contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the 
listing, excluding the practitioner's contract, and: 

Contracts 

Results 

In the prior year, the entity' s AUP report contained 
no exceptions in this category. As such, RHM has 
excluded this category from testing in the current 
year. 

a. Observe that the contract was bid in accordance See Comments Above. 
with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., 
solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required 
bylaw. 

b. Observe that the contract was approved by the See Comments Above. 
governing body/board, if required by policy or 
law (e.g. Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

c. If the contract was amended (e.g. change order), See Comments Above. 
observe that the original contract terms 
provided for such an an1endment. 

d. Randomly select one payment from the fiscal See Comments Above. 
period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the 
contract terms, and observe that the invoice 
and related payment agreed to the terms and 
conditions of the contract. 

-Al4-

Managements' Response 

The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

Historically. the Town has not required Board 
approval oF contracts. However, we will examine our 

policies related to contracts, and obtain Board 
approval in the future when appropriate. 

The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

The results did not include findings or criticisms. 
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Agreed-Upon Procedure 

Obtain a listing of employees/elected officials 
employed during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is 
complete. Randomly select 5 employees/officials, 
obtain related paid salaries and personnel files, and 
agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates 
in the personnel files. 

17 Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal 
period. For the 5 employees/officials selected 
under # 16 above, obtain attendance records and 
leave documentation for the pay period, and: 

18 

a. Observe that all selected employees/officials 
documented their daily attendance and leave 
(e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory). 

b. Observe that supervisors 
attendance and leave of 
employees/officials. 

approved the 
the selected 

c. Observe that any leave accrued or taken during 
the pay period is reflected in the entity's 
cumulative leave records. 

Obtain a listing of those employees/officials that 
received termination payments during the ftscal 
period and management's representation that the 
list is complete. Randomly select two 
employees/officials, obtain related documentation 
of the hours and pay rates used in management's 
termination payment calculations, agree the hours 
to the employee/officials' cumulate leave records, 
and agree the pay rates to the employee/officials' 

PayroU and Personnel 

Results 

The Town Clerk provided a listing of all 
employees and represented that the listing is 
complete. Five employees were randomly 
selected. Paid salaries and authorized hourly rates 
for each individual agreed to the personnel files. 

The employees of the Town have time sheets that 
document their attendance. 

Supervisors approved the attendance and leave of 
the five employees. 

The Town has a cumulative leave record in 
Quick.Books that reflects leave accrued and taken 
during the year. 

There was only one termination in the current 
year. The termination payment agreed to the hours 
recorded by the Town in the cumulative leave 
records, and pay rates agreed to the employee's 
authorized pay rate in the employee's personnel 
file. 

- A1 5 -

Managements' Response 
The results d id n ot include finding s or cri t icisms. 

The results did not include finding s or critici sms. 

The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

The t'esults did not include findings or c riticis ms. 

The results d id not include findings or criticisms. 



Town of Colfax 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
Schedule of Procedures, Results and Managements' Response (Continued) 

P ayroll and P ersonnel 

Agreed-Upon Procedure Results Managements' Response 

authorized pay rates in the employee/officials' 
personnel fLies. 

19 Obtain management's representation that Management has represented that all payments The re sults d id not include findings or criticisms . 

employer and employee portions of payroll taxes, were made and all associated forms were filed by 
retirement contributions, health insurance required deadlines. 
premiums, and workers' compensation premiums 
have been paid, and associated fonns have been 
filed, by required deadlines. 

- A16-



Town of Colfax 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
Schedule of Procedures, Results and Managements' Response 

Ethics 

Agreed-Upon Procedure Results Managements' Response 

20 Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials 
from procedure #16 under "Payroll and Personnel" 
above, obtain ethics documentation from 
management, and: 

a Observe that the documentation demonstrates One of the employees did not complete required As part of our new hire proccess, we will begin 

each employee/official completed one hour of ethics training. requiring employees to complete their ethics .training 

ethics training during the fiscal period. 
on their first day of employment. 

b_ Observe that the documentation demonstrates The Town has not adopted a written ethics policy Due to the size of our workforce, standards of ethical 

each employee/officiaL attested tbrough to be signed by employee/officiaJs_ behavior can be clearly communicated without 

signature verification that he or she has read the adopting written policies or requiring formal 

entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period. 
acknowledgement. 

-A~7-



Town of Colfax 
Statewide Agreed~Upon Procedures 
Schedule of Procedures:~ Results and Managements:~ Response 

Debt Service 

Agreed-Upon Procedure Results Managements' Response 

21 Obtain a listing of bonds/notes issued during the In the prior year, the entity's AUP rep on The results did not include findings or crit icisms. 

fiscal period and management' s representation that contained no exceptions in this category. As such, 
the listing is complete. Select all bonds/notes on RHM bas excluded this category from testing in 
the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and the current year. 
observe that State Bond Commission approval was 
obtained for each bond/note issued. 

22 Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the See Comments Above. The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. 
Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt 
covenants, obtain supporting documentation for 
the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual 
reserve balances and payments to those required 
by debt covenants. 

- A:18 -



Town of Colfax 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
Schedule o' Procedures, Results and Managements' Response 

Other 

Agreed-Upon Procedure Results Managements' Response 

23 Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public There was one potential misappropriation in the The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

funds and assets during lhe fiscal period and current year, which is addressed in the current year 
management's representation that the listing is audit report. The Town reported the allegation to 
complete. Select all misappropriations on the RHM for further investigation. 
listing, obtain supporting documentation, and 
observe that the entity reported the 
misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and 
the district attorney of the parish in which the 
entity is domiciled. 

24 Observe that the entity has posted on its premises The notice was visibly posted on a bulletin board The results did not include findings or criticisms. 

and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 at Town Hall. 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, 
fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 
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